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PRE-BID MEETING MINUTES 

Date: Thursday, December 4th, 2025 

Venue: Rustic Roof, Orange Walk Town 

“Design And Construction of Market Complex, Orange Walk Town, Belize 

Loan Number: 5877/OC-BL & 5881/GR-BL  

RFB No: BL-L1046-P00029 

Start Time: 1:00 p.m.  

Agenda: 

• Introduction 

• Project Overview 

• Procurement Presentation 

• Finance (payment and taxes) 

• Technical Presentation (Drawings and Priced Activity Schedule) 

• Discussion/ Questions 

The following were present from the Central Executing Unit (CEU), Ministry of Finance: 

1. Isani Enriquez - CEU 

2. Trudy Joseph - CEU 

3. Ruby Pascascio - CEU 

4. Karon Hamilton - CEU  

 

Representatives of the following companies who attended the Pre-Bid Meeting: 

1. Franz Elias, A & N Construction Ltd. 

2. Daniel Trujillo, A & N Construction Ltd. 

3. Humberto Blanco, HB Construction 

4. Betty Blanco, HB Construction 

5. Jeovanne Guerra, Guerra’s Construction 

6. Ramy Chia, Chia’s Engineering Ltd. 

7. George Cal, Chia’s Engineering Ltd. 

8. Roel Tamay, Triple E Construction 

9. Collet Maheia, Maheia’s United 

10. Aruny Perez, Orange Walk Town Council 

11. Hector Sabido, Orange Walk Town Council 
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Meeting Objectives 

 

To clarify procurement requirements, evaluation criteria, submission guidelines and technical 

overview for the Design and Construction of Market Complex, Orange Walk Town, Belize 

 

 

  

Key Questions and Clarifications 

 

Total Working Capital 

 

1) What is the total working capital? Should we provide proof of the working capital 

 

- Response:  The total working capital is BZD $332,200.00. In accordance with ITB 

5.2(g), authorization to obtain references from the Bidder’s bankers must be provided. 

The Bidder should demonstrate access to adequate financial resources, either through 

cash in the bank or an overdraft facility. 

 

2) Can the bidder combine the access of cash from the bank and access to credit from 

suppliers? 

 

- Response: We are requesting evidence of access to cash and/or overdraft facilities from 

financial institutions. The access to cash may be demonstrated through multiple 

financial institutions. 

 

Financial Statements 

 

3) Is the financial statement still required? 

 

- Response: In accordance with ITB 5.2 (f) management certified statements on the 

financial standing of Bidder, such as profit and loss statements and/or income 

statements for the past three (3) years (2022, 2023 and 2024).  Amendment #1 was 

issued with the requested/amended years. 

 

Good Standing Certificates 

 

4) How can the bidder submit the certificates if the certificates are issued after the 

deadline?  It usually takes two (2) for the certificates to be issued. 

 

- Response: We encourage bidders to apply for the certificates as soon as possible, 

especially given the upcoming holidays. If the certificates are not issued before the bid 

submission deadline, proof of application such as receipts may be submitted with the 

bid. This will demonstrate that the certificates have been requested and will be provided 

once they are released. 

 

 



Page 3 of 19 

 

5) Will the stalls be metered individually? 

 

- Response: Yes, each stall shall be metered individually for the market complex.  This 

will be controlled by a meter bank. 

 

6) Will there be wastewater treatment in place? 

 

- Response: Yes, aerobic water treatment will be utilized. 

 

7) How many stalls will be constructed? 

 

- Response: Yes, approximately 37 stalls will be constructed.     

 

It was noted that during the site visit that the drain will be covered.  Monuments that are 

situated on site and specific trees cannot be removed.   The monuments and the specific trees 

were shown to the bidders.  This will be further discussed with the successful bidder. 

 

Request for Bids (RFB) Timeline and Submission Requirements 

• Bidding Document Issued on: November 10th, 2025 

• Clarification Deadline: December 17th, 2025 (10:00 a.m. Belize Time). 

• Further clarifications may be requested via: procurement@ceu.mof.gov.bz 

• Bid Submission Deadline: December 30th, 2025 (10:00 a.m. Belize Time). 

• Bid Package Drop off location: Ministry of Finance, 3rd floor, Room, Sir 

Edney Cain Building, Belmopan City, Cayo District in a tender box 

• Contact person: Ruby Pascascio 

• Bid Opening: November 4, 2025 (10:45 a.m. Belize Time). 

• Bid Opening Location: Ministry of Finance, Conference Room, 2nd Floor, Sir 

Edney Cain Building, Belmopan 

• Office Number: 822-4106 

• Funding Source: Inter-American Development Bank (IDB) 

QR CODE TO BIDDING DOCUMENT 
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ANNEX I 
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ANNEX II 
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